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Lambert Bridge, 1952 flood. Photo provided
courtesy of Howard and Adele Dicke

After 1900, the typical truss was designed by
a county surveyor to standard American
Bridge Company specifications, and was
located across a major crossing in a remote
area. By the 1930s, the truss was used very
rarely for "ordinary" spans--fixed bridges of
small to moderate length.

Easily the Best and the
Strongest Bridge in the
County

he bridge was built by the American
Bridge Company in 1915. The design-
er was Malcolm P. Younker, and the contrac-
tor was D.E. Alders of Santa Rosa. There
were some delays experienced by the con-
tractor due to the inability to get the bridge
material in time. Once the steel was on the
ground, the bridge was erected in just 18
days. The contract price for the structure
was $8,961. A crew of ten men did the work.
The completion of the bridge was celebrated
in the Healdsburg Enterprise, 23 October 1915:
The carrying capacity is '
many times greater than
contemplated future demands
will ever impose. It is said
that this structure would
sustain a train of cars. The
statement is entirely credible

when it is known that the
installation of the concrete
floor, of an aggregate

weight of ten tons, only

served to lower the bridge
center one quarter of an inch.
It is easily the best and
strongest bridge in Sonoma
county, although not the longest.

he design of the new steel bridge was

Parker Through Truss. The one lane,
single span pin-connected bridge is 185 feet
in length. The superstructure has minor dec-
orative detailing. Unmodified, the bridge is in
need of rehabilitation. In 1993, Dennis
Harris and Dana Dericco prepared a themat-
ic nomination of Sonoma County historical
truss bridges to the State Office of Historic
Preservation. The Sonoma County Historic
Bridges Thematic District included 19
bridges and the site of a 20th. A total of
twelve bridges were designated as Sonoma
County landmarks in 1999, including
Lambert Bridge.

Historical Significance of
Lambert Bridge

istorian Dennis Harris determined that
Lambert Bridge was eligible for the
National Register of Historic Places at the

local level of significance. Of the 406 bridges
standing in Sonoma County, Lambert Bridge
is one of the few remaining intact Parker
Through Truss bridges still in existence. It is
one of seven. Built by the county as part of its
early "Automobile Age" highway system,
Lambert Bridge is important, according to
Harris, both for the aesthetic values of the
structure and its surrounding site and for its
early role in the development of automobile
travel in the Dry Creek Valley.

Preservation of Lambert
Bridge

hough Lambert Bridge has recogniz-

able historical significance to the coun-
ty, it is especially prized by its local Dry Creek
neighbors. Lambert Bridge has been recent-
ly in the news as a historic preservation issue.
The county is under pressure to replace the
bridge because of a state mandate to make
sure that all of the bridges in the county are
seismically safe. Susan Clark, Sonoma
County Landmarks Commissioner, warns,
"Every single historic bridge in Sonoma
County is threatened because of this. If peo-
ple are concerned, they need to show up at
Public Meetings to be heard." She recom-
mends that interested people contact Public
Works and Kathy Jacobs at the Planning
Department to be put on a notification list for
public meetings concerning bridges.

CALTRANS will pay the county millions of
dollars to build a concrete box girder
replacement bridge, but does not want to
spend the money to stabilize an historic
bridge.

An outcry of protest, from those advocating
Lambert Bridge's historical significance,
greeted initial plans from the Public Works
Department to replace the bridge. As bridge
preservationist Dana Dericco commented, "If
you tear down all the historic aspects of the
town, what is there left to see?"

In April about forty concerned people
attended a public meeting about the bridge,
held by two representatives from Public
Works, at Dry Creek Vineyard. According to
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HISTORIC

EVENT

ver the years the “City of Healdsburg”
Oand “Band Concerts” have become
almost synonymous. The Saturday night con-
certs in the Plaza provided entertainment for
local citizens and visitors for many years. Rural
families came to town to listen and socialize.
The merchants stayed open on those Saturday
evenings so the parents could shop and then
treat the children to something cool at the soda
fountain.

The Russian River Brass Band was evidently
the first organized band here. John S. Williams,
who came to Healdsburg as a young lad, noted
in his “Pioneer Recollections” that he remem-
bered hearing that band in the late 1850s. The
conductor was James E. Fenno, a jeweler and
watchmaker by trade. It is doubtful this band
played in the Plaza, as back then the block
donated to the city by Harmon Heald was still
covered with oak and madrone trees. It was
used mostly as a parking lot for wagons since
there were no fountains, benches or band-
stands. The Russian River Brass Band was still
in existence in 1866 when Professor Carl V.
Wilmot became the conductor. Previous to mov-
ing here he had been with the Presidio
Regimental Brass Band.

n 1873 the native trees were cleared from

the Plaza and pines, fire and eucalyptus
were planted. (This was just the first of the var-
ious Plaza landscaping projects over the years,
but that’s another story) About five years
later the bell tower and the first bandstand were
built. By the mid 1880s the Russian River Brass
Band must have disbanded for another musical
group, the Sotoyome Band, was formed. In
March 1888 this new band gave an open air
concert in the Plaza, the beginning of a series of
Saturday night concerts that year. In 1891 Prof.
D.C. Smith moved from Fresno to conduct the

MUSIC IN THE PLAZA
By June Maher Smith

Sotoyome Band. According to the Somoma
County Tribune, Smith was the “leading cornet
soloist on the Pacific slope.” Also in that years
the city fathers granted the band the privilege of
erecting a bandstand adjoining the bell tower
and furnishing benches for the audience’s com-
fort. The weekly Saturday evening band con-
certs started in May that year.

Although the band had only 15 members,
they played a full concert of marches, waltzes
and other selections. In fact, they opened the
June 5th 1897 concert with John Philip Sousa’s
march “King Cotton”. This same march is
included in our present Healdsburg Community
Band’s repertoire.

The Sotoyome Band also played for dances.
After one of their Saturday night Plaza concerts
in August 1897, they played at Muller’s Hall. The
Healdsburg Tribune stated that “Perfect order
will be maintained, and the dances will be con-
ducted in the best possible manner.”

By 1902 the Sotoyome Band had 2 new con-
ductor, D.O. Davis. George Alexander was the
business manager. Other members of the group
were Ed Ellis, John Fay, August Arata, Fred and
Temple Bailhache, Dave Bane, 1. Morel, Ralph
Powell, Charles Butler and Charles Proctor. The
next year.permanent lighting was installed in
the Plaza.

ot even an earthquake could stop the

Saturday night concerts. Two months
after the disastrous 1906 quake, the band
played two numbers by Healdsburg composers:
“The Gaiety Girl March” by Will L. Livernash,
and a march-song “The True Sons of ‘49,
words by Arthur Price and music by Louis
Meyer. The latter was dedicated to the San
Francisco earthquake and fire sufferers.

The band was reorganized in 1916 as the
Healdsburg Brass Band. Ed Pryor was the direc-
tor and there were 19 other members. Three of
them had played in the previous brass band,

John Fay, Dave Bane and Temple Bailhache.
This group also played for people living over on
the coast. Band members loaded their children
and instruments into a large wagon and spent a
couple of summer weeks camping at various
spots along the ocean. In the evenings they
would give a concert in one of the small town
there.

Even during the World War I years, the con-
certs were well attended. In May 1918 the
Healdsburg Tribune reported “Quite 2 number
of persons drive to Healdsburg from Santa Rosa
on Saturday evenings to enjoy the concerts given
by the Municipal Band in the Plaza”

In the late 1920s the Lytton Boys’ Band
(Salvation Army Band) was providing the
Saturday night music. During the 4th of July
weekend in 1927 they played six concerts over
three days. Major Taylor conducted the band
which continued playing on Saturday nights for
several years, using Healdsburg High School
music students to fill out their numbers.
Guerdon Miller remembers playing with them
in the mid 1930s. In addition to being present
for the Plaza concerts, Guerdon says they had to
attend two weekly rehearsals in the gymnasium
at the Iytton Home. Their weekly “salary”
totaled 10 cents -- a whole dime to spend on an
ice cream cone.

Also in the mid 1930s, the depression years,
the merchants signed a petition to abandon the
concerts as they did not bring enough profit to
those businesses which contributed to the
Chamber of Commerce and the concert fund. As
a result the Salvation Army Band discontinued
their concerts in the Plaza.

owever, in 1937 Owen Sweeten was
Hasked by the merchants and the City
Council to organize and conduct summer con-
certs. Sweeten was a musician and showman
who was well known in his native Salt Lake City.
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He had been a director of a large band which
played for dancing at the Saltair Resort at Great
Salt Lake and he had played on stage in many
theaters on the West Coast.

The Healdsburg Municipal Band concerts he
directed not only featured band music, they also
starred local talent, both young and old, con-
tests, and other diversions such as bathing
beauties. They drew large crowds to the Plaza
on Saturday nights. The Tribune reported that
“close to 4,000 people attended the July 5th
concert in 1941. At a concert the next month,
bottles of wine donated by Italian Swiss Colony
were given to the three oldest people in the
crowd and the one from the farthest distance.
Patriotism was building in this last peacetime
year: The Star-Spangled Banner was played at
the beginning and at the end of each concert.

he Healdsburg Municipal Band members
were local men, including Jess Ratchford,
Harry Latimer and John Condit. High school and
junior college students also played. Some of

them were Milt Brandt, Lee Engelke, Berwyn
Richards, Bob Sacry, Walter and Fred Rueger,
Ed Moy, Bill Autry, Jack Garrettsee, Jack Kellar
and Doug Arthur.

Although World War II interrupted the sum-
mer concerts, they were revived for a couple of
years after that. However, the union raised the
amount the players received to such a high level
that the merchants couldn't afford the costs.
Thus ended the Saturday night band concerts.

The old bell tower, bandstand and fountain
are gone and the gazebo on the east side of the
Plaza now served as the stage for various groups
who fill the square with all sorts of music on
summer Sunday afternoons. The Downtown
Business District, local businesses and the Arts
Council present these free concerts.

Although the old bands are long gone,
Healdsburg is now blessed with its own
Community Band. This polished group of musi-
cians presents concerts that are well received
by locals and visitors alike. They, too, play in
the Plaza, only it’s on a Sunday afternoon, not a
Saturday night.

Sources:

Interviews - Milt Brandt and Guerdon Miller. Russian
River Recorder, Issue #4, “Pioneer Recollections”
Democratic Standard, 5 December 1866.

Healdsburg Enterprise, 23 March 1888, 1 August 1903,
12 March 1937

Sonoma County Tribune, 4 & 7 May 1891, 4 June 1891
Healdsburg Tribune, 6 June 1895, 3 June 1897, 5 August
1897, 15 May 1902. 28 June 1906, 4 May 1916, 23 May
1918, 2 July 1927, 7 July 1941, 11 August 1941.
Sotoyome Scimitar, 31 May 1934

Owen Sweeten scrapbook at Healdsburg Museum

Healdsburg Historic Resources Inventory 1983

Healdsburg Muscum And
Historical Society
P. 0. Box 952
Healdsburg, CA 95448
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